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COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services M. Allen McCullough


Staff will provide an overview of the process to select an architectural firm for the Emergency Operations Center and Headquarters 


project, and will discuss its recommendation of Wakefield Beasley & Associates.


On June 14, 2012, the Purchasing Department issued Request for Proposals (RFP) #838- Emergency Operation Center Architectural 


Design.  The RFP requested engineering services for a new Emergency Operations Center, space for Public Safety Headquarters, and 


potentially a new Fire Station.  The RFP asked responders to bid separate prices for the three components, so that decisions could be 


made based on prices proposed and resources available.  Invitations were direct-mailed to 30 vendors, and were further extended 


through the Fayette Daily News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace, and Channel 23.  Thirteen vendors 


responded to the invitation to bid.  A pre-proposal meeting was held on June 28, 2012 to allow for questions and feedback on the project, 


and, after this meeting, the Purchasing Department made an addendum available to all respondents.  A committee was formed consisting 


of personnel from several County departments who reviewed and rated the RFP's utilizing specific guidelines.   


 


Wakefield Beasley & Associates was the consensus recommendation of the committee to Chief Allen McCullough.  Mr. Doug Shaw, who 


represents Wakefield Beasley & Associates, was contacted regarding its site design and architectural for the design fee in the amount of 


$170,000.00.  Mr. Shaw agreed to reduce the fee to $162,000.00.    Fire and Emergency Services recommends acceptance of the RFP 


fro Wakefield Beasley & Associates in the amount of $162,000 for the design and development of bid documents for the Emergency 


Operations Center and Headquarters project.


No action is required.  Staff desires to place its recommendation of Wakefield Beasley & Associates on the October 11, 2012 Agenda for 


formal approval.


The EOC/HQ project has funding of $1.3M (from FS #4). $950K in grant funding and $325K for the grant match were included in the 


2103 budget. Current available funding totals $2.575M. Additional funding has been slated for future years. 


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Finance - This architectural design should define overall project costs which is needed to firm up funding requirements. Operational costs 


have not been identified at this time and will need to be considered in future budget years. 


New BusinessWednesday, October 3, 2012











 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  September 20, 2012 
 
Subject: RFP 838 – Emergency Operation Center Architectural Design 
 
The Purchasing Department issued Request for Proposals (RFP) #838 for architectural and 
engineering services for a new Emergency Operation Center, space for Public Safety 
Headquarters, and potentially a new Fire Station.  The RFP asked responders to bid separate 
prices for the three components, so that decisions could be made based on prices proposed and 
resources available. 
 
Invitations were direct-mailed to 30 vendors.  In addition, invitations were extended via the 
Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace 
(www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  Thirteen vendors responded to the invitation to bid (please see 
the attached spread sheet). 
 
Based on responses received, it was decided to evaluate the proposals assuming construction of 
the Emergency Operation Center and the Headquarters, while allowing for future addition of a 
Fire Station. 
 
An Emergency Operation Center is a highly specialized structure, which requires more technical 
expertise to construct than the typical facility.  Wakefield Beasley & Associates demonstrated a 
high degree of knowledge and expertise in this area.  The evaluation committee recommended 
award of the contract to this firm, and I concur with the recommendation. 
 
Attachment 



http://www.glga.org/





PROPOSAL NUMBER: _______#P838________________________


Company


Emergency
Operation


Center


Public
Safety


Headquarters Sub-Total
Fire


Station
Total


Proposal


ROBERT NOBLE ARCHITECT $79,000 $60,000 $139,000 $48,000 $187,000


WILEY/WILSON 73,125 73,125 146,250 97,500 243,750


HUSSEY, GAY, BELL & DEYOUNG INTERNATIONAL, INC. 78,000 72,000 150,000 89,000 239,000


STUDIO ALA, LLC 75,817 75,818 151,635 66,105 217,740


WAKEFIELD BEASLEY & ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS INC. 88,000 82,000 170,000 88,000 258,000


POPE/PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, INC. 98,700 78,900 177,600 70,250 247,850


PRECISION PLANNING, INC. 95,000 87,000 182,000 104,000 286,000


MALLETT CONSULTING, INC. / IPG INC. 110,000 78,000 188,000 110,000 298,000


K.A. OLDHAM DESIGN, INC. 124,391 96,266 220,657 138,766 359,423


CROFT & ASSOCIATES(A) 150,400 85,700 236,100 92,500 328,600


POND & COMPANY 132,390 114,248 246,638 110,830 357,468


ACREAGE TO EDEN, INC. 162,000 115,000 277,000 115,000 392,000


ARCHITECTS DESIGN GROUP 222,923 215,673 438,596 160,380 598,976


(A) Architectural services for campus planning were bid as a separate line-item, at $13,800.  This amount is included in the EOC bid shown above.


PROPOSAL NAMER: _EMERGENCY OPERATION CENTER ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN  
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COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Main Street Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton / Brian Wismer


Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton and Director of Community Development Brian Wismer will discuss both the City of Fayetteville's 


Redevelopment Powers Referendum that will be voted on during the November 6, 2012 General Election, and the city's request to allow 


the consumption of alcohol on the Historic County Courthouse's lawn when authorized for use by the city. 


There are two items to be discussed for this request. 


 


The first discussion is to provide information about the City of Fayetteville's Redevelopment Powers Referendum, which, if approved by 


voters during the November 6, 2012 General Election, will give the city government authority under the "redevelopment powers law" to 


create development finance tools that can help revitalize older commercial areas.  These development finance tools, referred to as TAD's 


(Tax Allocation Districts) are intended to finance a portion of the up-front costs to redevelop aging commercial centers, without creating a 


liability to the taxpayer.  Financing offered within a TAD could supplement traditional financing to help push a redevelopment project 


forward. 


 


The second discussion is to seek the Board's direction on allowing the City of Fayetteville, under certain conditions, to serve vinous or 


malt alcoholic beverages on the Historic County Courthouse's lawn when authorized for use by the City.  This request is due, in part, to 


the upcoming "Chili Fest" which will occur on October 20, 2012, and the city would like the Board to consider revising its ordinance to 


accommodate the consumption of alcoholic beverages for this and similar events. 


No action is expected from this meeting.  The discussion pertaining to the upcoming referendum is for informational purposes only.  The 


discussion about revising the County's ordinance to allow for the consumption of alcohol at the Historic County Courthouse will require 


the Board's direction.


Not applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, October 3, 2012







CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 


 REDEVELOPMENT POWERS REFERENDUM 
 


 


(  )  YES 


 


(  )  NO 


Shall the Act be approved which authorizes the City of Fayetteville 


to exercise redevelopment powers under the 'Redevelopment 


Powers Law,' as it may be amended from time to time, for the 


purpose of improving economic and social conditions in the 


depressed areas within the city? 


 


 


What is it?? 


On November 6, Fayetteville citizens can elect to give their City 


government the authority under the “redevelopment powers law” to 


create development finance tools that can help revitalize older 


commercial areas.   


 


 


 


Give me a real-world example of how it can be used in 


Fayetteville?? 


Fayetteville has a number of aging commercial centers (strip malls) 


that are in great need of redevelopment.  The cost of redeveloping 


some of these sites makes it unlikely that anything will happen 


without any project incentives.  Using TAD’s is a way to finance a 


portion of the upfront costs of development without creating a 


liability to the taxpayer (you).  The difference a TAD makes can be 


just enough to push a redevelopment project forward. 


 


 







 2 


How have other Cities used these powers?? 


Over 40 cities and counties in Georgia have used these powers to 


bring redevelopment projects to their communities.  The most 


common use is the creation of a TAD (tax allocation district) around 


an older commercial center or area.   


 


When a TAD is created, that area is placed under a property tax 


freeze with respect to taxes paid to the City, County, and school 


board.  When the property is redeveloped, and the assessed 


property value rises, the additional taxes levied on that 


development will instead be used to pay for infrastructure and other 


development costs. 


 


 


 


Anything else?? 


� This does not create a new tax. 


� This does not increase your property tax. 


� This does not create new debt for the City’s general fund. 


� This does not create new condemnation powers. 


� The property owner within a TAD must be a willing participant. 


� This does create opportunities for redevelopment that would 


not happen without a TAD or similar financing tool. 


� The Mayor and City Council fully support this referendum 


because of the potential benefits and outcomes for the City and 


its residents. 


 


 


 







Redevelopment Powers 


Referendum
______________________________________________


November 6, 2012







Background


• 1985, Georgia Assembly adopted GA 


Redevelopment Powers Law


• Purpose: to foster public/private partnerships 


at the local level by creating a financing tool 


that will spur economic growth in 


underutilized areas; specifically Tax 


Allocation Districts (TAD’s)


• Local authority granted by public referendum 


majority vote







Background


• First used in GA - 1992


• Most notable example – Atlantic Station


• Also used in Marietta, Smyrna, Macon, 


Savannah & others


• Commonly used throughout the U.S.


• All 50 states have used in some form


• TIF’s (tax increment financing)







Background


• Referendum in Fayetteville failed in 2010


• Minimal voter education efforts


• Ballot text does not describe in user-friendly 


manner


• Referendum placed on November 6, 2012 


ballot


• Increased effort from City staff to provide 


accurate information to voters


• Endorsement is permitted for elected officials and 


private advocate groups







Ballot


• The ballot in November will read as follows:


( ) YES
( ) NO


Shall the Act be approved which authorizes the
City of Fayetteville to exercise
redevelopment powers under the
'Redevelopment Powers Law,' as it may be
amended from time to time, for the purpose
of improving economic and social
conditions in the depressed areas within
the city?







What is a TAD ?


• A Tax Allocation District (TAD) is a tool to 


create bond financing for infrastructure and 


other redevelopment costs in deteriorating or 


underutilized areas (primarily commercial)


• Property taxes received by local govt. entities 


from TAD site are frozen at current levels 


through the bond term


• Bonds are serviced from the increased 


property tax revenues that are created from 


the redevelopment project within the TAD.







How do TAD’s work ?


• Tax Increment Financing


• Where does the 


increment come from?


Frozen tax base


TAD 


Created


TAD 


Ended


Full tax 
revenues to 
City, County, 
School BoardProperty Tax


$$







What Properties Are Eligible for a TAD ?


• Must currently be served by sewer in some 


capacity


• Deteriorating areas that have experienced 


physical or economic decline, or even 


stagnation


• Areas with inadequate infrastructure to 


accommodate redevelopment







How do TAD’s work ?


• City & willing property owners define the 


redevelopment area boundaries


• Redevelopment plan is adopted


• Scope of work


• Cost/benefit analysis


• Revenue projections


• Mutual consent from County and School Board


• Base tax digest for TAD area established


• Increased property values resulting from 


redevelopment (the increment) are taxed and placed in 


separate fund to service bonds


• City, County, School Board receive full property tax 


revenues once bonds are retired.







Common Features of TAD’s


• Nationally recognized as a conservative 


financing tool


• Typically used to finance 5% - 15% of project 


costs


• Value of all TAD’s can not exceed 10% of 


the total Tax Digest


• Does not create a debt obligation to the City’s 


general fund


• Does not decrease current tax revenues


• Does not increase property taxes on 


homeowners







Common Features of TAD’s


• Developer must complete the project to 


receive the benefits


• No defaults in GA for over 13 years; $450 


Billion financed


• Many TAD bond funds have surpluses 


beyond debt service







Potential TAD targets


• 690-692 North Glynn shopping center


• Old Wal-Mart shopping center


• Banks Station shopping center


• The Villages undeveloped commercial 


property







 


 Sec. 3-87. Drinking in public.  
It shall be unlawful for any person to consume any vinous liquors or alcoholic beverages in or upon any 


street, alley, sidewalk, park or other public way or public place within the county or within any public 


building thereon, except that the Fayette County Chamber of Commerce, the Fayette County Economic 


Development Authority, the City of Fayetteville, and Fayette Senior Services may serve vinous liquors 


or alcoholic beverages within the buildings on their respective property leased from, or authorized for 


use by, the County provided that:  


 


1.   the event, if catered, is catered and the caterer is uses a duly licensed caterer by the 


City of Fayetteville;  


2.  alcohol is not served at an event more than four (4) times during any calendar year;  


3.  the event is solely related to the operation, fund raising, or raising awareness of the programs 


and services offered by the respective organization;  


4.  the organization notifies the Fayette County Marshall no later than two (2) days prior to the 


event; and  


5.  there are no direct sales of alcoholic beverages to the patrons of the event.  


 
 
 
 
Sec. 3-167. Drinking in public.  
It shall be unlawful for any person to consume any malt or alcoholic beverages in or upon any street, 


alley, sidewalk, park or other public way or public place within the county or within any public building 


thereon, except that the Fayette County Chamber of Commerce, the Fayette County Economic 


Development Authority, the City of Fayetteville, and Fayette Senior Services may serve malt or 


alcoholic beverages within the buildings on their respective property leased from, or authorized for use 


by, the County provided that:  


 


1.   the event, if catered, is catered and the caterer is uses a duly licensed caterer by the 


City of Fayetteville;  


6.  alcohol is not served at an event more than four (4) times during any calendar year;  


7.  the event is solely related to the operation, fund raising, or raising awareness of the programs 


and services offered by the respective organization;  


8.  the organization notifies the Fayette County Marshall no later than two (2) days prior to the 


event; and  


9.  there are no direct sales of alcoholic beverages to the patrons of the event.  
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COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Further discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance regarding the 


limit on the number of animals.


At the September 5, 2012 BOC Workshop, Commissioner Hearn proposed that the zoning ordinance be amended to remove the limit on 


the number of animals (cats and dogs) in the A-R zoning district.  The current limit on the numbers of dogs and cats in all other 


residentially zoned property (excluding A-R zoned property) will remain unchanged. 


 


Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the zoning ordinance and are recommending amendments to allow an unlimited 


number of animals in the A-R zoning district.  There are still issues with kennels as they related to pet stores and vet clinics in non-


residential districts that staff and the Planning Commission will continue to work on.


No action is required.  Staff is seeking direction for the Board on these proposed amendments.  If the Board is in favor of the proposed 


amendments, staff seeks permission to have them considered under Public Hearing.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, September 5, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, October 3, 2012
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COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Shenicka Madden / Pete Frisina


Ms. Shenicka Madden, owner of Time For Learning Day Care, would like to request the Board's consideration of amending the Zoning 


Ordinance related to set-backs and buffers, which would allow her to establish a child-care business in a commercial center in Fayette 


County.


This a citizen request to amend the zoning regulations regarding the buffer and setbacks for a child care facility. 


 


Ms. Shenicka Madden, the owner of Time For Learning Day Care, has leased space at 2400 Highway 138, Suite 204, Fayetteville 


Georgia.  This location is in a commercial center. 


 


A child care facility is a Conditional Use which requires buffers in addition to setbacks when said property abuts A-R or residentially 


zoned property. (Conditional Use allows for specific uses in which all conditions must be met and a variance is not an option.)  Since 


property both to the west and south of the leased property is residential, the commercial center cannot meet the Conditional Use 


requirements, meaning it is impossible for Ms. Madden to locate her childcare business in this commercial center. 


 


Ms. Madden is requesting the Board's consideration to reduce the current zoning restrictions in order to locate at the commercial center 


and establish her business in Fayette County.  Specifically, the request is to consider proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code 


of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article VII.  Conditional Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, 


and Commercial Development Standards.


Direction from the Board of Commissioners on whether or not to pursue amendments to Child Care Facility requirements in the Zoning 


Ordinance.


Not Applicable.


Yes March 2, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


A similar request was heard by the Board of Commissioners at the March 2, 2012 Workshop Meeting.  Minutes from that meeting are 


included in the backup material to this request.


New BusinessWednesday, October 3, 2012
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COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Further discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element text and map for SR 138 and 


the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance regarding the proposed General Business zoning district and SR 


138 Overlay Zone


During the June 6, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting, Mr. Todd Brooks spoke to the Board about his desire that the 


Board of Commissioners consider amending the County's Land Use Plan on SR 138 between SR 279, and SR 314 near the Clayton and 


Fayette County line. Mr. Brooks has a potential buyer for the property who wishes to construct a television studio on a portion of the 


land; however, the County's Land Use Plan does not recommend the zoning for such a use. Mr. Brooks hopes that consideration can be 


given to changing the Land Use Plan so that a rezoning application can be filed in the near future. The Board directed staff and the 


Planning Commission to review the Land Use Plan and to return with recommendations. The Board also suggested that a special zoning 


district could be created for the television and movie studio.  Initially the Planning Commission did not feel a new zoning district was 


warranted but now have come to the conclusion that a new zoning district is warranted.    Therefore, a new zoning district (General 


Business) and a new overlay zone for SR 138 is being proposed. 


No action is required.  Staff is seeking the Board's direction on the proposed amendments.  If the proposed amendments meet with the 


Board's approval, staff requests permission for them to be considered under public hearing at both the Planning Commission and at a 


future Board of Commissioners meeting.


Not Applicable.


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, October 3, 2012
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COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Solid Waste Vanessa Birrell


Discussion of the current Inert Landfill's capacity and the process to apply for a new Inert Landfill permit.


Since 1990, Fayette County has operated a permitted inert landfill within the boundaries of the closed southside landfill for use by several 


county departments such as Public Works, Buildings and Grounds Maintenance, the Water System, and Stormwater Management.  The 


City of Fayetteville also uses this permitted inert landfill for its needs.  Commercial and demolition type waste that cannot be recycled are 


disposed in the inert area. 


 


This inert landfill has reached approximately 95% capacity and must be closed.  A new inert landfill can be located on county-owned land 


west of the closed southside landfill where Public Works currently sorts and stockpiles dirt.  The topography in the area of this new inert 


landfill is such that operations will not be highly visible from property owners in the Quail Hollow subdivision. 


 


The closest alternate disposal facilities are commercial C&D landfills located in Coweta and Spalding Counties, each approximately 30 


miles away, and tipping fees at these facilities are $30/ ton and $35/ton respectively.


No action is required.  Staff is seeking permission to place this request on the October 11, 2012 Agenda for the Board's formal approval 


to submit a new Inert Landfill permit-by-rule application to the Environmental Protection Division (EPD).


There are not costs associated with permit submittal to EPD.  There will be costs associated with incremental clearing and surface 


preparation as waste disposal requirements dictate.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Finance - Operating costs, if applicable, will need to be identified for future budgets. 


New BusinessWednesday, October 3, 2012
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Workshop AgendaWorkshop AgendaWorkshop AgendaWorkshop Agenda
Board of Commissioners


October 3, 2012
 3:30 P.M.


Call to Order.


Acceptance of Agenda.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Further discussion of a draft Policy and Procedure document for the use of
speed tables as traffic calming devices on select County roads.


2. Further discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County
Comprehensive Land Use Element text and map for SR 138 and Fayette
County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance regarding the
proposed General Business zoning district and the SR 138 Overlay Zone.


3. Further discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance regarding the limit on the number
of animals.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton and Director of Community Development
Brian Wismer will discuss both the City of Fayetteville’s Redevelopment
Powers Referendum that will be voted on during the November 6, 2012
General Election, and the city’s request to allow the consumption of
alcohol on the Historic County Courthouse’s lawn when authorized for use
by the city.


2. Consideration of staff’s request to purchase Easy Vote software from sole
source provider Sivad Business Solutions, in the amount of $19,220.00,
with funds for this request to be allocated from the General Fund’s fund
balance, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract or related
documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


3. Staff will provide an overview of the process used to select an architectural
firm for the Emergency Operations Center and Headquarters project, and
will discuss its recommendation of Wakefield Beasley & Associates.


4. Discussion of the current Inert Landfill capacity and the process to apply
for a new Inert Landfill permit.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
1st Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov
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5. Ms. Shenicka Madden, owner of Time For Learning Day Care, to request the Board’s consideration of
amending the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance related to set-backs and buffers, which would allow her to
establish a child-care business in a commercial center in Fayette County.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Elections Tom Sawyer


Consideration of staff's request to purchase Easy Vote software from sole source provider Sivad Business Solutions, in the amount of 


$19,220.00, with funds for this request to be allocated from the General Fund's fund balance, and authorization for the Chairman to sign 


the contract or related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Advanced voting for the General Election has been scheduled by the Georgia Secretary of State to begin on October 15, 2012, and the 


Fayette County Elections Department is expecting a very heavy turnout of voters. 


 


Sivad Business Solutions is the sole source provider of Easy Vote software.  This software enables poll workers to scan Georgia ID's (ex: 


driver's licenses) which will then produce quick and accurate voters certificates. Staff anticipates this speedy and accurate capability will 


lower overall labor costs, will reduce the wait time for citizens to vote, and will increase overall accuracy since the traditional practice of 


handwriting voters certificates will not be required.  So far, this software has been implemented in over 50 counties in Georgia. 


 


Bids for this software have not been issued since Sivad Business Solutions is the sole source provider. The cost for this software, if 


approved by the Board, will be $19,220.00, and funds to purchase the software are requested to be provided from the General Fund's  


fund balance.   


 


Due to the fixed schedule established by the Georgia Secretary of State, if this request is acceptable by the Board, the Elections 


Department requests the Board of Commissioners formal approval to purchase the Easy Vote software during this workshop meeting.


Approval of staff's request to purchase Easy Vote software from sole source provider Sivad Business Solutions, in the amount of 


$19,220.00, with funds for this request to be allocated from the General Fund's fund balance, and authorization for the Chairman to sign 


the contract or other related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


The Easy Vote software will cost  $19,220.00.  If approved, staff requests funding for this purchase to be provided from the General 


Fund's fund balance.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


The sole source vendor for the Easy Vote Software has assured staff that the software will be operational in time for advanced voting on 


October 15, 2012. 


 


Finance- Will this purchase result in personnel cost savings in the approved 2013 budget which could be used to offset the $19,220? 


New BusinessWednesday, October 3, 2012
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COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Engineering Phil Mallon


Further discussion of a draft Policy and Procedure document for the use of speed tables as traffic calming devices on select County 


roads.


At the September 5, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting, staff presented the Board with a draft policy for the use of speed 


tables as a traffic control measure.  The Board had several comments regarding details of the policy and directed staff to further refine 


the policy before returning for additional consideration. 


 


The proposed Policy and Procedure for speed tables reflects the Board's input as well as additional research performed by staff. 


 


No action is required.  Staff is seeking either further direction on this draft policy, or is seeking approval by the Board to place the draft 


policy on the next available agenda for a formal vote.


If approved, the program will required additional funding for installation, repair, and maintenance.  Two fees for participants in the 


program are proposed, but these fees may not fully cover all program costs.


Yes Wednesday, September 5, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Finance - Where will funding be taken to cover additional costs if necessary? 


Old BusinessWednesday, October 3, 2012
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FAYETTE COUNTY 


POLICIES AND PROCEDURES__________________________________________________ 


OPERATIONAL FUNCTIONS 


Public Works – Speed Tables 


200.qq 


 


PURPOSE 


 


This Policy and Procedure establishes a process for the use of speed tables on select County 
roads and provides information on submitting a sponsor request; the traffic study and 
evaluation; public meetings; funding; and table installation, maintenance and removal.   
 


POLICY 


 


It is Fayette County policy to help maintain safe and appropriate vehicle speeds on County 


roads through a combination of proper road design, traffic control signs, pavement markings, 


right-of-way maintenance, enforcement, and, where appropriate and financially feasible, traffic 


calming measures.  This Policy and Procedure addresses one type of traffic calming measure 


that has been shown to reduce speed and discourage cut-thru traffic.   


 


PROCEDURE 


Background Information 


Slowing traffic speed is an on-going problem for Cities and Counties across the United States.  


Strategies to reduce speed include public education, enforcement, traffic signs and pavement 


markings, landscaping (to create appearance of a narrower corridor), traffic circles, lane-


narrowing devices, speed tables, etc.   


 


Speed tables are a raised portion of roadway, typically constructed of asphalt concrete or 


prefabricated rubber, designed to slow vehicles to 25 to 30 mph.  Speed tables are typically 3.5 


to 4 inches high with a 10-ft plateau and 6-ft inclines on either side.  Tables extend across the 


entire road width and are marked with reflective material and signs.  The delay to emergency 


response from speed tables is not considered a serious compromise of public safety emergency 


response capability.  Research shows that properly placed speed tables are effective at 


reducing vehicle speed and discouraging cut-thru traffic1.   


 


For purposes of this Policy and Procedure, the term speed table also includes speed humps, 


which are similar to tables but without the flat plateau between the inclines.  Speed tables are 


specified in lieu of humps when there is need for the device to serve as a crosswalk and/or a 


gentler ride is desired.   


 


No public street or road in unincorporated Fayette County shall have speed humps, speed 


tables or similar devices installed without the specific approval of the Board of Commissioners.   
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Sponsor Request 


The request for the installation of speed tables shall be initiated by a project sponsor.  The 


sponsor shall be a property owner within the subdivision (if commonly platted) or on the road for 


which the traffic calming is requested.  The sponsor shall serve as the primary point of contact 


for County staff during the project and shall be responsible for providing necessary information, 


petitions, funding, etc.   


 


A request to start the evaluation process shall be made in writing and include the following: 


 


 Sponsor name and property address; 


 Sponsor contact information (telephone number, mailing address, email); 


 Approximate number and location of proposed speed tables (Fayette County will work 


with the sponsor to refine the design upon completion of traffic study); and  


 A short description of the speeding or cut-thru traffic problem being addressed.   


 


Requests may be sent to Fayette County Public Works by mail, facsimile or email at: 


 


 Public Works 


115 McDonough Road 


 Fayetteville, GA  30214 


 (T) 770-320-6010 


(F) 770-719-0871 


publicworks@fayettecountyga.gov 


 


Public Works will review the request to determine if the noted roads are eligible for speed tables 


and look for any unusual circumstance that could preclude their installation.  If none, the County 


will proceed to the next step.   


Traffic Study and Evaluation Criteria 


Upon receipt of a valid request for speed tables, Public Works will ask the Fayette County 


Sheriff’s Office to measure directional traffic volume and speed over a 24-hour period.  Data 


from the study will be used to determine the mode and average vehicle speed, the percent of 


vehicles exceeding the posted speed, and the 85th percentile of speed.  This information will be 


shared with the project sponsor.   


 


Unless approved otherwise by the Board of Commissioners, the following evaluation criteria 


must be satisfied for speed table installation: 


 


1. The tables shall be located on County Local or Internal Local roads, per the County’s 


Thoroughfare Plan;   


2. The posted speed limit is 30 mph or less;   
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3. If the 85th percentile is at least 11 mph over the posted speed limit, then the petition shall 


include affirmative support from at least 66.7 percent of all property owners within the 


Petition Area;   


4. If the 85th percentile speed is less than 11 mph over the posted speed limit, then the 


petition shall include affirmative support from at least 80 percent of all property owners 


within the Petition Area;   


5. Speed tables shall not be located on street sections with grades greater than eight 


percent;  and 


6. Speed tables shall not be placed in areas with sight distance concerns.   


 


Speed tables are not advised for locations with 85th percentile speeds below 30 mph since the 


tables are designed to maintain speeds between 25 and 30 mph and would therefore provide 


little benefit.  Tables in series should be spaced 300 to 500 feet apart as research shows this is 


most effective at lowering the 85th percentile speed to the target range2.   


Petition Area and Property Owner Support 


Communities impacted by proposed speed tables shall demonstrate support by collecting the 


required number of affirmative votes from property owners in the Petition Area using the Fayette 


County Speed Table Petition form.  The Petition Area is determined by road layout and 


configuration, as described below.  Properties may not be added to or subtracted from the 


Petition Area for purposes of changing the percent of affirmative support.   


 


 Dead-End Roads and Single Entrance Subdivisions – For traffic calming requests on 


dead-end roads or within subdivisions having one entrance, the Petition Area includes all 


properties that are “downstream” of a proposed table plus and any “upstream” properties 


that are entirely or partially within 100 feet of a table.  The 100 feet is measured along 


the road’s centerline and does not extend down intersecting roads.  “Downstream” 


properties are those that would be accessible only by crossing one or more of the 


proposed tables.  “Upstream” properties, conversely, would be accessible without 


crossing a speed table.   


Alternatively, the sponsor may request, in writing, that the Petition Area include all 


properties in the subdivision (if commonly platted) or having frontage along the road (if 


not commonly platted).   


 


 Thru Streets and Multi Entrance Subdivisions – For traffic calming requests on thru 


streets or within subdivisions having two or more entrances, the Petition Area includes 


all properties having frontage on the road plus all properties on side streets whose sole 


access is off the road.  The County Engineer may modify the prescribed Petition Area to 


account for intersections, loop roads or other configurations that justify site-specific 


input.  Modifications to the Petition Area shall be consistent with the overall goal of 


getting input from property owners affected by the proposed tables and excluding those 


who are not.   
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All property owners in the Petition Area, including undeveloped lots, shall be given an 


opportunity to sign the form.  Properties without a valid signature will be counted as “no” votes.  


The vote and signature must be by the legal owner(s).  Spouses cannot substitute for one 


another and both must sign if they are joint legal owners.  Tenants may not sign for the property 


owner(s).   


 


The completed petition must be signed, with witnesses, and returned to Public Works where the 


parcels and signatures will be checked against County tax records.  In the event of a recent 


change of ownership, appropriate documentation may be considered in lieu of tax records.  


Signatures may not be withdrawn from a petition once submitted to Public Works.   


 


Affirmative support is determined by dividing the number of “yes” votes by the total number of 


properties in the Petition Area.  Each lot counts as one vote.  Common areas and amenity areas 


are excluded.  Petitions that meet the affirmative support requirements will be presented to the 


Board of Commissioners at a Public Meeting.   


Public Meeting(s) 


Upon receipt of a petition and confirmation of the required signatures, Public Works will prepare 


an agenda request for consideration by the Board of Commissioners at a Public Meeting.  The 


agenda request will include details on the type, number and location of the proposed tables.  


Specifically, the County Engineer shall recommend to the Board the: 


 material type and specific design of the speed tables; 


 exact locations for installation; and 


 number of devices to be installed. 


 


At this meeting the public may provide written or verbal comments in support or opposition to 


the proposal.  As appropriate, staff from Public Works may comment on the request and provide 


background information, including a review of the traffic study data.  Ultimately, the Board of 


Commissioners will approve or deny the request.   


Funding 


Since speed tables are installed for the benefit of a select group of property owners, costs for 


their purchase, installation, maintenance, repair and replacement are partially offset through two 


types of fees paid by the property owners in the Petition Area.   


 


The first fee is a one-time cost to help pay for the speed table materials.  It is the project 


sponsor’s responsibility to provide funds to Fayette County equal to 70 percent of the table’s 


material costs.  Fayette County will fund the 30 percent balance plus all equipment, labor, site 


preparation, signs, etc. required for installation.  For example, if two, pre-fabricated speed tables 


(assumed at $3,500 each for purposes of example) are requested for a subdivision, the sponsor 


would be responsible for providing $4,900 (2 x $3,500 x 0.7 = $4,900).   
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The second type of fee is an annual cost associated with Petition Areas.  This fee, currently set 


at $15 per year per parcel, is added to the property tax bills for all lots within a Petition Area.  


The revenue from the traffic calming fee is tracked independent of the County’s general fund 


and may only be used for the design, installation, maintenance, repair, replacement and 


removal of traffic calming measures in the unincorporated County.  The annual fee is set by the 


Board of Commissioners and may go up or down over time based on the accumulated reserve 


and program costs.   


 


Subdivisions may opt-out of a traffic calming Petition Area by following the procedures 


described below.  The removal of the annual fee will be effective in the following tax year.  The 


one-time material cost fee will not be reimbursed to Petition Areas opting out of the program and 


the tables will remain the property of Fayette County.   


Installation and Maintenance 


Speed tables will be purchased, installed and maintained by the Fayette County Road 


Department.  Speed tables may be pre-fabricated or constructed in-place using asphaltic 


concrete.  The tables will be marked with thermoplastic or other reflective material.  Warning 


signs will also be placed around the tables.   


 


The Road Department will procure the material for the speed table(s) only after all the above 


requirements have been satisfied, including approval from the Board of Commissioners and 


receipt of the sponsor/Petition Area’s share of the material costs.  Installation will typically be 


completed within three months of receipt of payment. 


 


Speed tables and associated striping and signs will be maintained by the County’s Road 


Department.   


Opt-Out Procedures 


Sponsors may petition for removal of one or more speed tables at any time.  The process for 


removal requires the same petition and number of supportive signatures as required for 


installation.  Only property owners in the Petition Area may vote to remove a speed table.  


Similar to installation, removal requires approval by the Board of Commissioners.  If approved, 


the tables, signs, and striping will be removed by the Road Department and necessary 


repairs/patches will be made to the road.   


 


As noted above, the annual assessment fee will not be removed from a property’s tax bill until 


the year after a Petition Area opts-out of the program.  
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Footnotes 


1 Updated Guidelines for the Design and Application of Speed Humps by M. Parkhill, R. Sooklall, 


and G. Bahar.   


2 Gwinnett County Speed Hump Program Manual.  Gwinnett County Department of Transportation, 


Traffic Engineering and Planning Division, Traffic Studies Section.  December 2008. 


Other References 


An internal Fayette County memorandum regarding Traffic Calming Devices dated March 27, 


2007. 


http://www.trafficlogix.com/en/.  Traffic Logix is located in Spring Valley, NY 


Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, 2009 Edition with Revisions No. 1 and 2.  , U.S. 


Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration.   


Summary of a Proposed Recommended Practice:  Guidelines for the Design and Application of 


Speed Humps by R. Elizer, Jr., PE.  ITE Journal, May 1993. 



http://www.trafficlogix.com/en/
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